
. ·-
Attended 

September 4, 

ID Last Name First Name Organization E-Mail Address 2013 Meeting 

1 Arnold Tom Tucson Water tarnoldl@ci.tucson.az.us 
2 Atkins Lisa CAP laatkins@gmail.com 
3 Avery Christopher Tucson Water Christo12her.Avery@>tucsonaz.gov 
4 Bauer Mary marycbauer@gmail.com 
5 Benemelis Perri CAP 12benemelis@ca12-az.com y� 
6 Betcher Brian MSIDD brian@msidd.com 
7 Bevins Orson orson.bevins@gmail.com 
8 Block Mike Metro Water mblock@metrowater.com \•···/ 
9 Braun Eric Mesa, City of eric.braun@mesaaz.gov tz_, � 

10 Brooks George editor@theebonycactus.com 
11 Brothers Kay Las Vegas Valley Water District Kay.Brothers@lvvwd.com 
12 Buma Grant CRIT grant.buma@crit-nsn.gov 
13 Burns Gayle CAP gburnsaz@cox.net 
14 Buschatzke Tom ADWR tbuschatzke@azwater.gov � 
15 Bushner Greg Vidler Water GBushner@vidlerwater.com .Liiv(� 
16 Cannon-Etie Pamela 12amelacetie@cox.net 
17 Capps Gregg Chandler, City of Gregg.Ca1212s@chandleraz.gov 

..,.. 

18 Carpenter Guy CAP guy@arizonawaterguy.com L::h_,. 17 ..,, 

19 Chandler Randy USBOR rchandler@usbr.gov '-.},. 
20 Chappell Barbara Avondale, City of bcha1212ell@avondale.org n/2-.G 
21 Collazo Tom Nature Conservancy tcollazo@tnc.org , 

22 Commandeur Leo Global Water Resources Leo.Commandeur@gwresources.com 
23 Cooke Ted CAP tscooke@ca12-az.com 
24 Crockett David Flowing Wells Irrigation District dcrockett@fwid.org 
25 Cullom Chuck CAP ccullom@ca12-az.com 
26 Culp Peter Squire Sanders 12cul12@ssd.com 
27 Curtis MCURTIS401@aol.com 
28 Damas Wayne Sunbelt Holdings wdames@sunbeltholdings.com 
29 Danos Val AMWUA vdanos@amwua.org \1 ) 
30 DeMarco Tony CAP ademarco@ca12-az.com __.,....-

31 Dent Patrick CAP 12dent@ca12-az.com f'o 
32 DeRosa Marilyn Avondale, City of mderosa@avondale.org 
33 Dishlip Herb Herb Dishlip Consulting herbdishli12@cox.net 
34 Donnnely David Las Vegas Valley Water District david.donnelly@lvvwd.com 
35 Downing James Ji m@h a rcuva rco. com 
36 Dunham Doug ADWR dwdunham@azwater.gov 
37 Dunlap Doug CAP ddunla12@ca12-az.com 
38 Ehlers Jeff SRP jwehlers@sr12net.com 
39 Entsminger John Las Vegas Valley Water District John.Entsminger@lvvwd.com 
40 Erlandsen Evelyn ADWR ejerlandsen@azwater.gov 
41 Fabritz-Whitney Sandra ADWR safabritz@azwater.gov 
42 Fairbanks Frank CAP frank.fairbanks@cox.net 
43 Farley Tom tomfarley@aaronline.com 
44 Farmer Scott scott@land-homes.com 
45 Ferguson Dan dferg@email.arizona.edu 

J 

46 Ferris Kathy AMWUA kferris@amwua.org � 
47 Flores Nan nxf@cox.net I 

48 Forbes Denise Ryley Carlock & Applewhite dforbes@rcalaw.com 
49 Fowler Ron Ronald.W.Fowler@usace.army.mil 
50 Franzoy Gene Franzoy Consulting Franzoyconsulting@cox.net 
51 Fuerst Dee CAP dfuerst@ca12-az.com 
52 Garrick Dustin dustingarrick@gmail.com 
53 George Maureen mrglaw1@frontier.com 
54 Gin Gary Phoenix, City of gary.gin@12hoenix.gov /!JJ#,/ef' n 

55 Given Gary CAP ggiven@ca12-az.com �A 

56 Goddard Terry CAP terry@terrygoddard.com y 

57 Griffin Gail Arizona Senate ggriffi n@az I eg.gov 
58 Grignano Laura CAP lgrignano@ca12-az.com cl� 
59 Gross Don ADWR djgross@azwater.gov �r{jo 
60 Haberman mhaberman@lrlaw.com ~v 

61 Harbour Tom CAP tharbour@ca12-az.com 
62 Hartdegen Jim The �rtdegen Group jim@jv85194.com 
63 Hartdegen Jim CAP \ I/) /,Y- jim@jv85194.com 
64 Haws Mitch USBCJF;r mhaws@usbr.gov 
65 Hendricks Paul Consultant i;2hendricks@cox.net 
66 Hendrix Mike Mohave County mike.hendrix@mohavecounty.us 
67 Henley Tim AWBA thenley@azwater.gov 
68 Henning Brian CAP bhenning@ca12-az.com 



Attended 

September 4, 

ID Last Name first Name Organization E-Mail Address 2013 Meeting 

69 Holler Eric USBOR eholler@usbr.gov 

70 Holway Jim CAP HolwayforCAWCD@gmail.com 

71 lkeya Deanna ADWR d ki keya@azwate r .gov 

72 Jacobs Pat CAP lmjiv@lion-l.com 

73 Jardee jhardee@cox.net 

74 Jesser MJ CAP mjesser@caQ-az.com ----

75 Johanson Hakon Gilbert, Town of hakon.Johanson@gilbert.gov ,\-V\ 
76 Johnson Jeff Las Vegas Valley Water District jeff.johnson@lvvwd.com 

I -..__,, 

77 Kai Herb Kai Farms herb@kaifarms.com 

78 Kamienski Eric Tempe, City of eric kamienski@temQe.gov 

79 Kash Gina Arizona Legislature gkash@asleg.gov 

80 King mlking@iid.com 

81 Klobas Nicole ADWR ndklobas@azwater.gov t}lWJ_)

82 Knox Kathi Knox Consulting kathiknox@cox.net 

83 Korich Dee Tucson Water Dee.Korich@tucsonaz.gov � 
84 Kukino Doug Glendale, City of kukino@ci.glendale.az.us 

85 Kupel Doug Glendale, City of DKuQel@GLENDALEAZ.COM 

86 Kusel Diane ADWR djkusel@azwater.gov 

87 Lacey Mike ADWR mjlacey@azwater.gov 

88 Lane Colleen ADWR cklane@azwater.gov 

89 Lea Harold Active Water Markets haroldlea@activewatermarkets.com 

90 Leary Jason Brown and Caldwell jleary@brwncald.com 

91 Lenderking Jake Epcor jlenderking@e12cor.com 

92 Lew Mark NPVA mark@n12va.net 

93 Lewis Mark CAP mark@marklewis.com 

94 Little Val vlittle@ag.arizona.edu 

95 Macre Heather CAP Heathermacre4CAWCD@gmail.com 

96 Maguire Rita Maguire & Pearce rmaguire@mQwaterlaw.com 

97 Maher Thomas SNWA thomas.maher@snwa.com 

98 Maniccia Peter Qmaniccia@homebfc.com 

99 Marquez Lawrence USBOR lrmarguez@usbr.gov 

100 Mawhinney John jtm012@comcast.net 

101 Mccann Tom CAP tmccann@ca12-az.com 

102 McEachern Ron CAIDD manager@caidd.com 

103 McKenna Juliet Errol Montgomery jmckenna@elmontgomery.com 

104 McMullen Patrick Qatrick. mcm u llen@itcaonline.com 

105 McNulty Michael Lewis and Roca Michael McNulty@lrlaw.com 

106 Megdal Sharon CAP smegdal@cals.arizona.edu 

107 Merrill Dave Vidler Water d merri ll@vidlerwater.com l)Wl 
108 Moore Colette Mesa, City of Colette.Moore@mesaaz.gov 

109 Moreno Michelle ADWR mamoreno@azwater.gov 

110 Morrison Richard rnm@slwQlc.com 

111 Moulton Cynthia CAP cyter1eegrace7@yahoo.com 

112 Moyes Jay jimoyes@lawms.com 

113 Myers MHMYERS@aol.com 

114 Nally Karen kn al lylaw@cox.net 

115 Neal Cliff Phoenix, City of clifford.neal@Qhoenix.gov \. ...... �
.--

116 Nelson Doug DougCNelson@cox.net 

117 Newlin dmnewlin@aol.com 

118 Nunez Christine Surprise, City of Christine. N unez@surQriseaz.com 

119 O'Connell Virginia AWBA voconnell@azwater.gov I --
120 Olszak Nathan singlemn21@hotmail.com / 
121 Orme Paul Salmon, Lewis & Weldon Qro@slwQlc.com L-·/

122 Ozomaro Jack CAP jozomaro@ca12-az.com 

123 Pearce Mike Maguire & Pearce m12earce@mQwaterlaw.com 

124 Peterson McClain Colorado River Commission of Neva mQeterson@crc.nv.gov 

125 Pickard Pamela CAP 1212ickard@cox.net 

126 Pierson Timothy GRIC tim.Qierson@gric.nsn.us 

127 Purcell Larry SDCWA 1Qurce11@sdcwa.org 

128 Quigley Andrew Tucson Water andrew.guigley@tucsonaz.gov 

129 Ray mray@azleg.gov 

130 Reece Mary USBOR mreece@usbr.gov 

131 Renner George georenner@aol.com 

132 Roberts Dave SRP dcrobert@sr12net.com 

133 Roos m roos@water.ca .gov 



Attended 

September 4, 

ID last Name First Name Organization E•MaU Address 2013 Meeting 

134 Rossi Terri Sue AWBA tsrossi@azwater.gov 

135 Rot Stephen Scottsdale, City of srot@scottsdaleaz.gov 

136 Rule Dennis CAGRD drule@cap-az.com 

137 Rupprecht Candice candicer@cals.arizona.edu 

138 Ruzgerian Harry hruzgerian@mwdh2o.com 

139 Saletta Phil Oro Valley, Town of psaletta@orovalleyaz.gov 

140 Schehuber mschlehuber@greenstonerp.com 

141 Schmidt Sheila sschmidt@gustlaw.com 

142 Schmitt Kathryn CAP kschmitt@cap-az.com 

143 Schwartz-Manocl Bridgette CAP bschwartzmanock@cap-az.com !1fl}"\ 
144 Seasholes Ken CAP kseasholes@cap-az.com � 
145 Sejkora Bob Arizona State Parks rds2@azstateparks.gov V 
146 Sharpe Pico Holdings rsharpe@picoholdings.com 

147 Shipman Taylor Errol Montgomery tshipman@elmontgomery.com 

148 Siegel Rich SRP rssiegel@srpnet.com tl(};4. ,/ 
149 Silvani Gerard Phoenix, City of gerard.silvani@phoenix.gov 

150 Simon Benjamin Benjamin Simon@ios.doi.gov 

151 Singelton Joe PCWAA jsingleton@pcwaa-az.org 0.?_,<;;' 
152 Sinkey Erica Vidler Water esinkey@vidlerwater.com !I 
153 Slowinski Ken ADWR kcsl owi n ski@azwate r .gov 

154 Snider David Pinal County davidsnider@cybertrails.com 

155 Spatton dspatton@aol.com 

156 Stewart Annie Fennemore Craig ASTEWART@FCLAW.com 

157 Stinnett Robin SRP robin.stinnett@srpnet.com �c:: 
158 Stirling Scott sstirling@beusgilbert.com 

� 

159 Swan whswan@aol.com 

160 Sweeney Sheryl Ryley Carlock & Applewhite ssweeney@rcalaw.com 

161 Tamashiro Larry Las Vegas Valley Water District larry.tamashiro@lvvwd.com 

162 Tannler jeff ADWR jmtannler@azwater.gov 

163 Tenney Warren CAP wtenney@metrowater.com 

164 Thompason Crystal CAP cthompson@cap-az.com 

165 Thompson Dirk Tucson Water dirk.thompson@tucsonaz.gov 

166 Thorley Matthew Las Vegas Valley Water District matthew.thorley@lvvwd.com 

167 Timian-Palmer Dorothy Vidler dorothy@vidlerwater.com 

168 Tobin Andrew Arizona House of Representatives atobin@azleg.gov 

169 Toy Doug Chandler, City of doug.toy@chandleraz.gov 

170 Turkett Warren CRCN wturkett@crc.nv.gov 

171 Udall Chris Agribusiness Council chris@agribusinessarizona.org 

172 van Allen Bill New Magma bvanallennewmagma@mchsi.com 

173 VanQuathem Michele Ryley Carlock & Applewhite mvanquathem@rcalaw.com 

174 Vasquez Suzanne Phoenix, City of suzanne.vasguez@phoenix.gov 

175 Walker Shelly MSIDD shelly@msidd.com 

176 Ward Grant MSIDD grant@msidd.com 

177 Weber Magill Nature Conservancy mweber@tnc.org 

178 Whitler Ron Buckeye, Town of rwhitler@buckeyeaz.gov 

179 Widmark Derrick info@diablotrust.org 

180 Williams John SRP mflowe@srpnet.com 

181 Williams Roger rwilliams@torrentresources.com 

182 Wilson Richard wilsonwater@aol.com 

183 Wilson Walley Tucson Water wally.wilson@tucsonaz.gov 

184 Wilson mwilson21@cox.net 

185 Woner Jeff Tonopah Irrigation District TIDDistrictAdmin@krsalien.com 

186 Wong Ron BKW Famrs ron@bkwfarms.com 

187 Zimmerman Carol CAP carol@zimmermancom.com 

f �db r f\ 'f16\ CL i VJ_ ";)tm vJ a. � Q<,,;q_ f h, \bt A@_ �stmo__�i'.l'i J 

�lJ IAVltliVI � �� S�f 
(JV\, \I\ 2>� . VV\� u. n lo VI C Slf · CDWJ �/ 

Ji>�( GL-j Q f-(2_ p q � t-v ii ) '/H, Jvaj E? {V- (J�)'-"✓S, Ca"" ✓



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

NOTICE AND FINAL AGENDA OF MEETING OF 

THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on Wednesday, September 4, 2013 at 
1 :00 p.m. at the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012, Upper Verde Conference Room. The meeting is open to the 
general public. 

The agenda for the meeting is as follows: 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

11. Approval of Minutes
• June 19, 2013 meeting

Ill. Water Banking Staff Activities 
• Deliveries
• Recovery planning update
• Review of Arizona baseline modeling assumptions
• Re-evaluation of AWBA numeric goals

IV. Draft 2014 Plan of Operation
• Discussion of water delivery schedule (Table 2)
• Water and facility rates
• Funding availability
• Public meetings

V. Action Planning
• Discussion and potential approval of proposal to purchase long-term storage

credits
• Discussion paper
• Draft legislative proposal

• Discussion of proposal to request a general fund appropriation for Indian
firming

• Update on action planning process

VI. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, October 16, 2013 
Wednesday, December 18, 2013 



AWBA 

Page 2 

Dated this 3
rd 

day of September, 2013

This is a tentative agenda that is subject to change prior to the scheduled meeting date. 
Please contact the AWBA at (602) 771-8487 24 hrs in advance of meeting for final 

agenda. 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the 2nd floor to sign-in and 
receive a visitor's badge. Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also 
required to sign out and return their badges. Thank you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign 
language interpreter, by contacting Michelle Moreno at 602-771-8530 or 602-771-8501 
(TDD). Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the 
accommodation. 



I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

NOTES: 

On August 16th
, ADWR, CAWCD, and A WBA issued a joint press release in 

response to the Bureau of Reclamation's August 2013 24-month study that projects 

releases from Lake Powell to Lake Mead in water year 2014 will be 7.48 MAF as 

opposed to the historic releases of 8.23 MAF. Projections show that releases in 2015 

could also be 7.48 MAF. If this is the case, it could cause the elevation in L. Mead to 

fall below the 1,075 ft elev., resulting in the Secretary declaring a shortage to the 

Lower Basin in 2016. 

While this is not expected to trigger a firming obligation for the A WBA, it would 

impact lower priority CAP water users including the A WBA, CAGRD, and to an 

extent, irrigation districts that receive non-Indian agricultural pool water. 



CAP 
CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: 

August 16, 2016 

CONTACTS: 

PRESS RELEASE 

Crystal Thompson, CAP, 602-321-9349, cthompson@cap-az.com 

Michelle Moreno, ADWR, 480-251-7621, mamoreno@azwater.gov 

1996 

Colorado River Shortage Will Have No Direct Impact On CAP City Water Supplies 

Phoenix -August 16, 2013 - Today, the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation released its monthly 

Operation Plan for Colorado River System Reservoirs 24-Month Study (Study), which projects 

that releases from Lake Powell into Lake Mead in water year 2014 (October 2014 through 

September 2015) will be reduced by 9% as compared to 2013 (7.48 million acre-feet versus 

8.23 MAF). The study also indicates that releases will most likely be 7.48 MAF again in 2015. 

These back-to-back reductions could cause Lake Mead's elevation to fall below the 1,075 foot 

elevation by the end of 2015, which would result in the U.S. Secretary of the Interior declaring a 

Lower Basin shortage for 2016. These projections are subject to change as the year progresses, 

particularly if there is a good winter snowpack in 2014 or 2015. 

If there is a Colorado River shortage in 2016, there would be no direct impact to the water 

supplies for cities, residential water users, and Native American Indian Tribes. The Central 

Arizona Project's (CAP) deliveries would be reduced by 320,000 acre-feet, which is about 20% of 

the CAP supply in recent years. This reduction would impact lower priority CAP users, including 

underground storage by the Arizona Water Banking Authority and Central Arizona Groundwater 

Replenishment District, as well as non-Indian agriculture. 

"While the possibility of a shortage declaration is significant, Arizona has been planning and 

preparing for just such a condition for decades," said Sandra Fabritz Whitney, Director of the 

Arizona Department of Water Resources and Chairman of the Arizona Water Banking Authority. 

"Arizona has led the nation in conservation efforts and long-term water management, including 

storing millions of acre-feet of water underground as a backup supply." 

David Modeer, General Manager of the CAP, added that, "While all of us in Arizona should 

continue our conservation efforts, this also serves as a call to the federal government and all 

Colorado River water users that we need to work together to seek creative management 

solutions in the short term and augmentation of supplies in the long-term." 

### 



IL Approval of Minutes of Meeting 

NOTES: 

Move approval of June 19, 2013 AWBA meeting minutes 

ACTION: 

Approve minutes with any needed corrections. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

June 19, 2013 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Vice-Chairman Maureen George, chairing the meeting on behalf of 
Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, welcomed attendees. All Authority 
members were present except ex-officio members, Senator Gail 
Griffin and Speaker of the House Andy Tobin. Chairman Sandra 
Fabritz-Whitney and John Mawhinney attended via teleconference. 

Approval of Minutes 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS 
Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, Chairman 
Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 
Clifford A. Neal, Secretary 
Jim Hartdegen 
John Mawhinney 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
The Honorable Andy Tobin 
The Honorable Gail Griffin 

Vice-Chairman George requested motions to approve the minutes of the March 20, 
2013 regular quarterly meeting of the AWBA and the minutes from the April 24, 2013 
Special Meeting. Mr. Neal moved to approve each set of minutes. Mr. Hartdegen 
seconded each motion, and the Authority approved both sets of minutes. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
Deliveries. Ms. O'Connell, Manager of the AWBA, referring to the monthly delivery 
charts, explained that AWBA deliveries through May are nearly on target with about 
one-third of deliveries already met. Deliveries to the Phoenix AMA are now expected to 
occur at the end of the year. Storage issues are not anticipated. In response to a 
question from Mr. Neal about where storage will occur in the Phoenix AMA, Ms. 
O'Connell replied: 6,000 acre-feet is scheduled for storage at Tonopah Desert 
Rechage Project (TORP), 7,200 acre-feet at Queen Creek Irrigation District and 1,700 
acre-feet at Superstition Mountains Recharge Project. 

Interstate Water Banking. Ms. O'Connell briefed the members on the Third Amended 
and Restated Interstate Water Banking Agreement between the AWBA, Southern 
Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) and the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 
(CRCN).She noted the AWBA approved the draft agreement at the March meeting, 
authorizing the Chairman to sign the agreement after it was approved and signed by the 
SNWA and CRCN. Both parties subsequently approved the agreement and it was fully 
executed on May 20th

• With that, Ms. O'Connell explained, the AWBA no longer has an 
obligation to accrue the 1.25 million acre-feet of credits. However, the parties can still 
agree to store water on an annual basis, which could include Nevada's unused 
apportionment. Future arrangements would be on a pay as you go basis. 

CAWCD 4¢ ad valorem tax. Ms. O'Connell stated that at the May 2
nd 

CAP Board 
meeting, the Board resolved to draw $45 million, from the 4¢ Water Storage Tax Fund, 
to replenish CAWCD's strategic reserves. At that meeting, the Board was also given a 
presentation on the property tax rates for the upcoming year. The discussion included 
options for depositing collections from the 4¢ Water Storage Tax into various funds held 
at CAP. In response, Ms. O'Connell sent a letter to CAP conveying the AWBA's 
concerns about using the 4¢ Water Storage Tax as a way to address future financial 
shortfalls. The letter also requested the Board's water storage tax resolution include a 
provision recognizing that AWBA water storage is a part of CAP's OM&R costs .. 



Ms. O'Connell noted she made similar comments at the Finance, Audit, and Power 
(FAP) Committee meeting also held in May. With regard to the resolution, she had 
pointed out that while there is an understanding today that AWBA storage is included in 
OM&R that might not be the case in the future. She also requested that the language 
be kept general, because the AWBA is currently authorized to use the funds for things 
other than CAP M&I firming today and there might be other things the AWBA could use 
the funds for in the future that have not yet been identified. CAP staff, including legal 
staff, assured the FAP Committee that the language in the resolution was sufficient and 
that the addition was not needed since a paper trail had already been established that 
recognizes AWBA water storage as a part of CAP's OM&R. The FAP committee 
approved the resolution as is without making Ms. O'Connell's requested changes. The 
CAP Board subsequently adopted the resolution at the June meeting without the 
AWBA's requested changes. 

Vice-Chairman George asked whether CAWCD has maintained its sentiment on future 
use of the 4¢ tax as discussed at the AWBA's April meeting. Ms. O'Connell responded 
that CAWCD staff had indicated that they do not foresee additional use of the 4¢ tax 
monies, but could not commit to refrain from using the funds for other purposes 
because there are many unknowns associated with the Navajo Generating Station. 
Some Commission members felt the AWBA should therefore make every effort to 
spend the unused 4¢ tax monies. Mr. Neal pointed out that CAP also raised its base ad 
valorem tax rate to 10¢, which represents an increase of over 60% to cover future 
energy cost increases. He lauded CAWCD's efforts saying CAWCD is collecting as 
much as it can under its taxing authority. 

Commission members expressed concern that the CAWCD staff and Board have 
excluded any mention of the AWBA in the 4¢ tax resolution and feel that in doing so, it 
leaves the AWBA in a vulnerable position. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney agreed indicating 
that while it would not give the AWBA a guarantee, it would give the AWBA more 
certainty. Commission members asked Chairman Fabritz-Whitney to meet with the 
CAWCD Board President and perhaps General Manager, David Modeer, to discuss the 
AWBA's concerns. 

Recovery Planning. Ms. O'Connell provided the Commission with an update on the 
joint recovery planning process. The group has made a lot of progress and is coming 
together on strategies for a Plan. The group will continue to look to the Ad Hoc group 
for feedback. Commission members asked about the time frame for completion so 
water could be stored in optimal locations for future recovery. Ms. O'Connell explained 
that group will be meeting next week to discuss timing. Vice-Chairman George asked 
Ms. O'Connell to inform members of the agreed upon time frame. 

Update on Indian Settlements. Tim Henley, consultant for the AWBA, gave the 
Authority members an update on Hualapai Tribe and Navajo Nation/Hopi Tribe 
settlements. Regarding the Hualapai Tribe, he indicated that settlement negotiations 
are continuing and that firming is being discussed but within the limits of the Arizona 
Water Settlement Act. It is unlikely the Tribe's claims would be settled this year. 

2 



The Navajo Nation/Hopi Tribe settlement discussions have been discontinued. Instead, 
the Navajo Nation decided to litigate the lawsuit it filed against the Secretary of Interior 
in 2003 in which they claim that DOI breached its fiduciary duty to the Nation by failing 
to determine the Nation's rights to the waters of the Lower Colorado River. The Nation 
is requesting the court hold unlawful and set aside certain operations of the Lower 
Colorado River, including interstate banking regulations and the Storage and Release 
Agreement, because the Secretary failed to consider the needs of the Nation and the 
Tribe for Colorado River water. ADWR has intervened as a defendant in the lawsuit on 
behalf of the State of Arizona. Other interveners include CAP and SRP, the Arizona 
Power Authority, Nevada, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, Imperial 
Irrigation District and the Coachella Valley Water District. 

2012 Annual Report 
Vice-Chairman George asked Ms. O'Connell and Terri Sue Rossi, Technical 
Administrator for the AWBA, to present the 2012 Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan. 

Annual Report. Ms. O'Connell presented the Annual Report, the details of which are 
available in the Annual Report itself and the related PowerPoint presentation. 
Highlights include: 

• AWBA delivered 134,000 acre-feet for storage in 2012; 125,503 acre-feet of
credits accrued (73,912 acre-feet in Phoenix AMA, 19,192 acre-feet in Pinal
AMA, 32,399 acre-feet in Tucson AMA)

• Revenues collected were about $3.9 million; expenditures were $17.5 million
including $13.6 million in 4¢ tax monies used to offset water delivery costs for
storing water

• Cumulative credits accrued by AWBA to date are 3.8 million acre-feet of credits
(3.2 million acre-feet for Arizona uses and 600,000 acre-feet for Nevada uses)

Ms. O'Connell also gave an overview of the 2013 Plan of Operation indicating that the 
total supplies available to the pool shared by the CAGRD, the federal government and 
the AWBA was around 61,371 acre-feet. Of that volume, the AWBA Plan of Operation 
includes 51 ,546 acre-feet, 1 ,000 of which will be delivered to the Southside 
Replenishment Bank. Ms. O'Connell noted that this volume is the smallest amount of 
water made available to the AWBA in its history. 

Mr. Mawhinney pointed out an error on page 12 indicating a $3 million contribution for 
the construction of the White Mountain Apache Tribe Rural Water System that should 
instead say $2 million. Ms. O'Connell noted that it was a typographical error that had 
already been corrected. 

Mr. Neal asked if the $45 million transferred �y CAWCD to CAP's strategic reserve 
came out of the Maricopa4¢ tax fund. Ms. O'Connell responded affirmatively. He also 
asked about previous requests to have the AWBA's funds audited, specifically the 4¢ 
tax. Ms. O'Connell responded saying ADWR has a formal financial auditing process, 
but the AWBA does not hold the 4¢ tax monies, CAWCD does. The audit would need 
to be conducted at CAP, and CAP has an annual financial auditing process. There 
would be nothing to audit at the AWBA relative to these monies. Ms. O'Connell added 

3 



that AWBA and CAP staff have worked together as recently as last year to provided 
information to CAP board members on this topic, which included an accounting of all 4¢ 
tax monies collected, expended, the balance remaining and the credits accrued. 

Mr. Mawhinney asked for clarification on the Indian settlement requirement to assist the 
federal government with its obligations and the credit accrual goals related to that line 
item. Ms. O'Connell responded saying the AWBA obligation was to provide $3 million 
in cash or in-kind service to the federal government. This was done by accruing an 
equivalent amount of credits. She indicated that $2.3 million came from general fund 
appropriations, $600,000 came from withdrawal fees and a small amount was applied 
to the cost of services. These credits, currently held in the AWBA long-term storage 
account, will not be transferred to the federal government until there is a firming 
obligation. 

Regarding credits accrued for Nevada, Chairman Fabritz-Whitney asked if the AWBA 
staff had seen the letter sent to the Nevada Legislature by select members of the 
Arizona Senate and CAP Board Member Mark Lewis that supposedly suggested 
Arizona would keep the 600,000 acre-feet of credit accrued for Nevada. She asked if 
there was any truth to this and if this issue had come up at the CAP Board meeting. 
Ms. O'Connell responded saying that staff had not seen the letter and that she did not 
recall a discussion on the issue at the Board meeting. She indicated she would look 
into the matter following the meeting. 

Commission members also inquired if the AWBA would store Nevada's unused 
apportionment in the future. Ms. O'Connell responded that it would be a decision made 
by the AWBA Commission in that year. If there was sufficient capacity and Arizona 
needs were met, then perhaps the AWBA Commission could store water for Nevada. 
Nevada would be responsible for paying for that storage. 

Mr. Mawhinney asked about Ms. O'Connell's statement that the AWBA Commission 
has taken no position on mandatory conservation. He was uncomfortable with this 
language and instead described the situation as a discussion left open as opposed to 
the AWBA taking or not taking a position. He suggested the AWBA re-examine the 
issue and either adopt a policy or put it to bed. Ms. O'Connell explained that during 
those earlier conversations, the consensus was that there were other provisions already 
in place that addressed water conservation during drought conditions. She added, 
however, that the lnteragency Recovery Planning Work Group could take another look 
at the issue. 

Mr. Mawhinney asked if the AWBA dedicates credits accrued using withdrawal fees for 
Indian firming and to the degree the AWBA loses access 4¢ tax monies, does that it 
take away from using the withdrawal fees credits to support other water management 
purposes. Ms. O'Connell responded affirmatively. 

Ten-Vear Plan. Terri Sue Rossi, AWBA, then presented the Ten-Year Plan, the details 
of which are available in the Annual Report itself and the related PowerPoint 
presentation. Highlights include: 

• Projected to store 690,000 acre-feet of water (60% of the water projected in

4 



2011 plan) and expect to accrue 632,000 acre-feet of credits 

• 4¢ tax makes up 90% of funding available in Pima County and 40% of funding
available in Pinal County; funds exhausted by 2018

• Absent appropriations, withdrawal fees will become primary source of funding tor
Indian firming; if obligations fully materialize, only 300,000 acre-feet of
withdrawal fee credits would remain to address water management issues

• Initial volume tor Southside Replenishment District fully subscribed

• M&I firming goal met in Phoenix by 2020

• M&I firming goal in Pinal attainable with use of withdrawal fee credits

• Goal not attainable in Tucson even with use of withdrawal fees credits

• Region moving closer to shortage conditions, but probabilities and volumes are
too low to assume a shortage during this planning period

• If recovery triggered, Indian obligations are expected to be affected first followed
closely by on-river obligations

• Some probability of surplus exists

Regarding probability of surplus, Tim Henley noted that Mr. Neal had asked staff to 
include a discussion on the probability of surplus conditions during the planning period. 
Model results indicate that the probability of a surplus could be as low as 5% and as 
high as 20%. Mr. Henley proposed the following language be added to the Ten-Year 
Plan: 

8. Surplus Conditions

While the Ten-Year Plan assumes normal water supply conditions, model 
runs tor this period do show that there is approximately a 20% probability 
that a surplus condition could exist in the later years. If a surplus year is 
determined, then the AWBA would attempt to store any available water. 
Additional storage, over what is currently planned in the Ten-Year Plan for 
that year, could be limited based on funding, canal, and storage capacities 
available to the AWBA. 

There were a number of comments on the Annual Report. All changes were 
incorporated where applicable except for one that provides details about the 
probabilities of shortages by type of obligation. CAWCD requested that this section be 
deleted out of concern that the numbers could conflict with later modeling runs used tor 
recovery planning. AWBA staff instead included a footnote that identifies the specific 
modeling analysis used in the plan for clarification. 

Commission members discussed the impact of losing the 4¢ tax monies on the Ten
Year Plan results. Staff responded indicating the plan assumes the tax sunset, so only 
the monies collected through the 2016 tax year are used in the Ten-Year Plan. 
Commission members also asked about how Arizona integrates its modeling efforts into 
the USBOR modeling efforts. Deanna lkeya, ADWR Colorado River Group, responded 
saying both organizations use the same model (i.e. Colorado River Simulation System 

5 



or CASS) but incorporate different assumptions. The primary difference between the 
two sets of assumptions is that Arizona uses a different upper basin depletion schedule 
than the USBOR. 

Commission members expressed concerns about whether the AWBA's firming goals 
are still valid given current modeling results by the USBOR and ADWR. Ms. O'Connell 
responded saying Tim Henley will study this issue during the next fiscal year. A 
concern in particular was the timing of the study and the risk to the Maricopa 4¢ tax 
funds given that the Ten-Year Plan shows that Phoenix would exceed its firming goal. 
Ms. O'Connell responded saying the AWBA does not have a policy to stop storing water 
when the goals are reached. As long as there is water, money and capacity available, 
the AWBA would continue to store water. The AWBA can store water to firm non-CAP 
supplies as well. In response to a question on whether the modeling takes growth into 
consideration, staff pointed out that it did. Vice-Chairman George asked for a progress 
report on the Arizona baseline modeling at the AWBA's next quarterly meeting in 
September. 

Commission members expressed frustration about just reporting on its problems and 
issues and not taking any action to resolve them. Such issues included declining water 
availability, M&I firming gap in Tucson, declining pump tax revenues with the 
urbanization of agriculture, and 4¢ tax levy expiration. Commission members 
concluded the AWBA needed to go in the direction of action items. Vice-Chairman 
George proposed the conclusions section of the Ten-Year Plan be amended to include 
the development of an action plan. As a part of that process, the AWBA would develop 
priorities with action items instead of just a list of issues facing the AWBA. Vice
Chairman George distributed a list of action items she and Mr. Mawhinney prepared for 
the Authority's consideration. As money and water gets tighter, the AWBA needs to 
come with priorities and it needs to prepare an action plan to address the diminishing 
resources. 

After discussing various issues and problems, two action items emerged for immediate 
attention: purchasing long-term storage credits accrued by others and requesting a 
general fund appropriation for Indian firming. Vice-Chairman George requested the 
stakeholders send any ideas in terms of priorities for the AWBA and/or action items to 
address diminishing water and financial resources to the AWBA staff. Mr. Mawhinney 
asked if a special meeting is needed to go through these problems, issues and actions. 

Vice-Chairman George asked for a motion to approve the 2012 Annual Report and 
Ten-Year Plan including the additional language regarding surplus conditions proposed 
by Mr. Henley and the language at end of the Ten-Year Plan identifying the 
development of an action plan over the next several months. Mr. Hartdegen moved to 
approve the 2012 Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan including the amendment 
proposed by Mr. Henley and Vice-Chairman George's amended language regarding an 
action plan. Mr. Neal expressed concern about the timing saying staff should have until 
this time next year for the 2013 annual report. The Authority agreed to modify Vice
Chairman George's amendment consistent with Mr. Neal's request and he seconded 
the motion. The authority adopted the amended Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan. 

6 



Administrative Budget 

Ms. O'Connell described the FY 2013 budget indicating that the amount budgeted was 
nearly $600,000 and the amount actually spent was $515,000. For the FY 2014 
budget, the AWBA projects expenditures of less than $490,000. Commission members 
asked about amending the budget in September if the action items require additional 
work, or should the current budget reflect potential costs associated with these new 
action items. The Commission suggested including a specific line item under 
Professional and Outside Services for the development and implementation of an 
action plan not to exceed $200,000. Mr. Mawhinney moved to approve the budget 
amendment. Mr. Hartdegen seconded the motion. The Authority passed the 
amendment. 

Mr. Neal moved to amend the operating expenses to provide an additional $2,400 for 
employee training bringing the total to $3,000. Mr. Hartdegen seconded the motion and 
the Authority approved the motion. 

Vice-Chairman George asked for a motion to approve of the FY 2014 budget with a 
$200,000 line item for developing and implementing action planning and an additional 
$2,400 for training. Mr. Neal moved to approve the revised budget. Mr. Hartdegen 
seconded the motion and the Authority approved the budget as amended. 

Call to the Public 

There were no public comments. 

Vice-Chairman George announced the next AWBA meetings are scheduled for 
Wednesday, September 18, 2013 and Wednesday, December 18, 2013. She noted 
that based on today's discussion a special meeting could be scheduled between now 
and the September meeting. Mr. Hartdegen moved to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Neal 
provided the second and the motion carried. 

The meeting adjourned at 12:12 p.m. 

7 



Ill. Water Bank Staff Activities 

NOTES: (No action required, agenda item for discussion only) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to update members on: 

• Monthly deliveries

• Recovery planning update

Call on Deanna Ikea to brief members on the Arizona baseline CRSS modeling 

assumptions 

Call on Tim Henley to provide an update on re-evaluating A WBA numeric goals 

ACTION: None 



140 

120 

� 
� 100 

" 
0 80 

-� 60 

� 40 
::, 

u 
20 

o 1 _L..E:;1�.._._.__LL,1 

35 

30 

� 
u. 25 
2! " 
" 
g 20 

! 15 
:i 
E 

§ 10 
u 

5 

jan feb mar 

jan feb mar 

2013 Plan of Operation - INTRASTATE 

DELIVERIES - ALL AMAs 

Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul 

DELIVERIES - PINAL AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

aug 

apr may jun ju/ aug 

12 80 

70 
10 

60 

8 
50 

6 40 

30 
4 

20 
2 

10 

0 0 
sep Oct nov dee jan 

5 

4 

40

1 35 

r 
30 

25 
3 

20 

15 

10 

0 0 
sep Oct nov dee jan 

feb mar 

feb mar 

DELIVERIES - PHOENIX AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

-

□ [] __ o_□- -1 
apr may jun jul aug 

DELIVERIES - TUCSON AMA 

Planned vs. Actual 

apr may jun jul aug 

sep oet nov dee 

sep oct nov dee 

I ..... """""'° (MONTtfl.Y) -IClUH. (MONTHLY) --"'-"'•"e; [CL .. ; -ICTUAL(CUMJ I 

25 

20 

15 2! 
.:i 
g 

10 ;: 

5 

0 

5 

4 

4 

0 
::;; 

ai 
3 ., u. 

2! 
3 .:i 

g 
2 :::. >, 

· 2 0 
::;; 

0 



Actual deHveries updated 28-Aug-13 
Plan of Operation 7-Dec-11 Jan feb mar apr may jun Jul aug sep oci nov dee total 

Phoenix AMA 

TONOPAH DESERT a a a a a a a a 0 a a a a 

2,000 2,000 2,030 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,030 
NMIDD a a 0 a a a a a 0 a a a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
QCID a a a a a a a 0 0 a a a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 175 1,343 2,285 1,142 1,143 1,142 7,230 
SUPERSTITION MTNS a a a 0 a 0 a 0 0 0 a a a 

0 500 500 702 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,702 
Subtotal a a 0 a a a a D a a a 0 D 

Total to date a D 0 a 0 a a D a 0 0 0 0 
Projected total to date 2,000 2,500 2,530 702 0 0 175 1,343 2,285 1,142 1,143 1,142 14,962 

Pinal AMA 

CAIDD D a a a a a a a a a 0 a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6,600 0 0 0 0 6,600 
MSIDD 510 3,140 2,350 a 600 a a D a a a 0 6,600 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,650 1,650 1,650 1,650 0 6,600 
HIDD a a 0 a 1,400 a 1,000 D 0 0 0 a 2,400 

408 536 989 935 935 536 247 218 472 400 670 254 6,600 
Southside Bank 1,000 0 0 a a a 0 D a a a 0 1,000 

1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 
Subtotal 1,510 3,140 2,350 0 2,000 0 1,000 a 0 a a 0 10,000 
Total to date 1,510 4,650 7,000 7,000 9,000 9,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
Projected total to date 1,408 536 989 935 935 536 247 8,468 2,122 2,050 2,320 254 20,800 

Tucson AMA 

AVRA VALLEY D 0 D a 0 0 0 a D 0 0 a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 183 700 883 
CAVSARP 0 0 a 0 a a a a 0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
SAVSARP 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 a 0 0 a 0 a a 0 8,000 

2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,000 1,901 11,901 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ a a a 0 a a 0 a 0 a 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

PIMA MINE ROAD a a 0 0 a 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 700 800 1,700 800 4,000 

CMID 0 0 a a a a a a a 0 a a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
BKWFARMS a 0 0 0 0 0 a a a a a a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
KAI FARMS - Red Rock a a a 0 a 0 0 a a 0 0 a a 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Subtotal 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,000 
Total to date 2,000 4,000 6,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 
Projected total to date 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 0 0 700 800 3,883 3,401 16,784 

TOTAL 3,510 5,140 4,350 2,000 2,000 0 1,000 a a 0 a a 18,000 
Total to date 3,510 8,650 13,000 15,000 17,000 17,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 18,000 
Projected tofal to date 5,408 5,036 5,519 3,637 935 536 422 9,811 5,107 3,992 7,346 4,797 52,546 



Joint Recovery 

Plan Update 

ADWR, AWBA & CAP 

AWBA Quarterly Meeting 
September 4th

, 2013 

9/4/2013 

1 



"Effective planning and 
coordination among AWBAI

ADWRI CAPI CAP customersl

recovery partners and others is 
essential to successful recovery ... 

11 

--Recovery of Water Stored by the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority: A 
Joint Plan by A WBA, ADWR and CAP. 
August 2013 Draft, page 3. 

9/4/2013 

2 



Progress to Date 

o Drafted Sections l -4

o Shared with the Ad Hoc group

o Received initial feedback

o Waiting for written edits/comments

o Developing Sections 5-7

o Broader distribution will occur when the
remaining sections of the draft document
are complete

9/4/2013 

3 



Today,s Focus 

o Review first 4 Sections of Plan - set the
stage for the who, what, where, when
and why

o Emphasis on Section 4 "Likelihood, Timing

& Magnitude"

o Before the end of the year, we will present
the remaining Sections that address how
recovery will occur (implementation)

9/4/2013 

4 



Section l : Background, Scope 

and Purpose 

o Section provides broad context

o Scope includes recovery of the AWBA's
credits in support of its goals and obligations:

o To firm CAP M&I priority subcontractors and P-4
on-River M&I users during shortage

o To meet the State's obligations to firm up to
23,724 AF of NIA priority CAP pursuant to Indian
water rights settlements

o To meet interstate water banking obligations
with Nevada

9/4/2013 

5 



Section l : Background, Scope 

and Purpose (continued)

o Clarify roles of the primary institutions

o Establish planning-level certainty

o Analyze and project the timing & magnitude
of potential recovery (through 2045)

o Identify potential recovery partnerships and
opportunities

o Identify key recovery decision points and
actions within the planning horizon

9/4/2013 

6 



Section 2: Roles and 
Responsibilities 

oAWBA 

o CAP

oADWR 

o Reclamation

o CAP's Recovery Partners

o Beneficiaries

o Other Interested Parties

9/4/2013 

7 



Section 3: Funding, Purpose, 
and Location of Credits 

o AWBA has accrued 3.8 million AF of credits
through 2012 (3.2 MAF for intrastate and
600,000 MAF interstate needs)

o Several factors determine where recovery of
these credits will occur

o Funding Sources

o Statutory Purposes

o Location of Storage

9/4/2013 

8 



Credits By AMA & Funding 
Source 

Funding Source Phoenix 

... 
4-Cent Taxi 

Withdrawal Fees 

General Fund 

Other Intrastate: 

Indian Firming Appropriation 

Shortage Reparation 

GSF Operator Full Cost Share2 

lnlrastolo TOTAL 

Interstate - Nevada 

TOTAL 

AMA 

1,329,925 

293,632 

42,316 

20,642 

------=-

• •  

187,465 

394,896 

306,968 

60,507 

14,125 

390,334 

98,788 

54,546 

28,481 

1,227 

51,009 439,851 109,791 

MtiMUIMHitii 

9/4/2013 

9 



U) 
+-
--

1J 
(]) 
� 

u 
\,l-

o 

C 

0 
+-
0 
0 
0 

_J 

0 
.-t 



Section 4: Likelihood, Timing & 
Magnitude of Recovery 

o Factors Affecting Recovery

o Modeling Approach

o Synthesizing Results

9/4/2013 

11 



Section 4: Likelihood, Timing & 
Magnitude of Recovery 

o Factors affecting Recovery

o Shortage

o Non-shortage

9/4/2013 

12 



Shortage Factors 

o Recovery of AWBA credits will be required

when the reduction in Arizona's supply
intersects demand of users (pools) for
which the AWBA has firming goals or
obligations

9/4/2013 

13 



9/4/2013 

Shortage: Supply Factors 

o To Arizona

o Basin Hydrology

o Upper Basin Demands

o Initial Reservoir Condition

o Reservoir Operations

o Within Arizona

o Colorado River Uses and Priorities

o CAP Uses and Priorities

14 



9/4/2013 

Shortage: Demand Factors 

o On-River

o Agricultural Use

o Rate of municipal growth

oCAP 

o Use of long-term entitlements

o Rate of municipal growth

o Use of Indian contracts

15 



16 

Non-Shortage Factors 

o Outage on the CAP system (outside
scope of this Plan)

o Interstate ICUA Requests

o Rate of Nevada's municipal growth

9/4/2013 

16 



Modeling 

o Analysis of recovery factors requires use of

models

o The Joint Plan relies on two models

o Reclamation's Colorado River Simulation
System (CRSS)

o Custom recovery model that calculates the
probability of specific recovery volumes
through time based on range of supply and
demand conditions

9/4/2013 

17 



CRSS Modeling Assumptions 

Basin Hydrology 

Upper Basin Demands 

Operation of Yuma Desalting Plant 

Mexico Shortage Sharing 

Reservoir Operations 

Initial Reservoir Condition 

Observed Record (1906-2010) 

ADWR Upper Basin Demand Assumption 
- 4.8 MAF by 2031, then flat

No 

�es, Minute 319, extended 

2007 Interim Guidelines, extended 

I 2014 Lake Mead elevation 

9/4/2013 

18 



> 
0) 
0 
-

0 
� 

D 
> 
I 

C 

U') 

0 
co 

0 
.--
0 
N 

E 
-0 
0 
0-
.--

0 
0 
0 

8 
0 
Ll'I-
N 

"""5i 

......._ 

-

0 
0 
0 

8 
0 
o' 
N 

-.... 

--,, 

-..... 

0 
0 
0 

g' 
0 
0 
.-i 

0 

8 
0 
0 
0 
vi 

0) 
..-t 



N 
0 

Consumptive Use (In 1,000s Acre..fee1 
N N W W W W W � � � � � � 
en co o N � en o:1 b N � en = b 
g g g g g g g g g g g g g

1 s11 r-rr-::t-----..i---t--+----f--r--+--+-----1f----l------l-� 
1973 
1975 
1977 

1979 

1981 
1983 
1985 
1987 
1989 
1991 
1993 
1995 
1997 
1999 
2001 
2003 
2005 
2007 
2009 
2011 

� 2013 
� 2015 

2017 

2019 
2021 
2023 
2025 
2027 
2029 
2031 
2033 
2035 
2037 
2039 

2041 
2043 
2045 

o·
0 

C 
u, 
<D 

\ N. 

::;1 \
<D \ 

0 

::J 
\ 

5· 

\ <D 
I 

\ 

C 

""O 
""O 
<D 
� 

co 
0 
en 
--

:::, 

0 
<D 

3 
0 
:::, 
Q_ 
en 

I.D 
-

� 
-
N 
0 
..... 
w 



Reservoir Operations 

Interim Guidelines (2007) and Minute 319 
Shortage 

Tier 

I Tier 1 

[Jier3_ 

January 1 
Elevation of 
Lake Mead 

Delivery Reductions During Shortage 
(AF) 

11015• to 1050• I [ 13,000_] 

I <1025• to 1000· J I 20,000

.,-.7- -·1
l so,ooo I I 320,000 I
[ 125,ooo I I 4ao,ooo l

9/4/2013 

21 



Shortages to Arizona 

Probability of Shortages to Arizona 
70% --- - - - - --------------

60% -'----- -- - ---=.-4.------

,so% 
i 

140% 

j30% 

!20%, --

i 
i 

·10% ___ ,__ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ ____ - - - -

0% ........ ==--------�-�-----.--------

...... ,._'> �
� 'l,� � 

,._C!I r,," re-� � � 
� 

�,.., �'V �� �,.,... �,., ... �" � � � �,.,
.., 

9/4/2013 

11,<!'-" '1,,#' i' 

22 



Recovery Model 

o The recovery model incorporates the 105
different water supply traces from the
CRSS model and matches those against a
range of projected on-River and CAP
demands.

9/4/2013 

23 



N') 
.-I 

0 
N 
......... 
,::t
......... 
C) 

D 
C: 
0 

Q) 
0 

!........ 

Q) 

--
Q:: 

I 

C 

0 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
o. o. � 
0 0 0 
an 0 IQ 

<">. � "l - - -

ttOZ 

Ztai 

o,oz 

8£0Z 

9tOZ 

t£0Z 

ZtOZ 

OtOZ 

8ZOZ 

gzoz 

tZOZ 

zzoz 

ozoz 

8�0Z 

uoz 

t�OZ 

z�oz 

o�oz

800Z 

900Z 

tooz 

zooz 

oooz 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 

g
0 0 0 

� o. 0 0 

0 tS 0 tS tS 
0 u, 0 IO 0 

"l -.. -.. � � - - - - -



On-River P-4 Demand 
100,000 

90,000 

80,000 

70,000 

60,000 

50,000 

40,000 

30,000 

20,000 

10,000 

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 

9/4/2013 

25 



9/4/2013 

CAP Demand 

1,800,000 

Full Long-Term Contract Use by 2045 
I 

1,600,000 

1,400,000 

1,200,000 

1,000,000 

800,000 

1.415 MAF 

600.000 

400,000 

200,000 

���������¢�¥����#��� 
■ P3 ■ M&I & Indian ■ NIA ■ Ag Pool ■ Other Excess 

26 



9/4/2013 

CAP Demand 

1,800,000 

Full Long-Term Contract Use by 2035 
I 

1,600,000 

1,400.000 

1,200,000 

1.cm.000

800,000 

1.415 MAF 

600,000 

400,000 D 

200,000 

b � � � � b � � A  � b � � � -� -h � � � .� 
#�#�����V�V ##¥�#¥����� 

■ P3 ■M&I & Indian ■NIA ■Ag Pool ■Other Excess 

27 



Nevada Demand 

350,000 

300,000 

250,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100.000 

50,000 

Nevada Consumptive Use (1970-Present) 

Enliflement 

����������������������� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �-� �-� �-� � 

9/4/2013 

28 



Scenarios 

Scenarios On-River 
Demand 

Increase to 1.22 
MAF by 2045; Ag 
steady, Muni 
growth per 2006 
Census, no 
conversion of P-4 
agricultural use 

(ADWR's Scenario 
A for NIA 
reall<2ca1J2n) 
Increase to 1.22 
MAF by 2045; Ag 
steady, Munl 
growth per 2006 
Census, full 
conversion of P-4 
agricultural use to 
M&I by2035 

CAP 
Demand 

Full long-term 
contract use by 

2045 

Full long-term 
contract use by 

2035 

I 
Nevada Request 

Al: Start Ill 2025; steady to 
2063 (~ 15 kAF/yr); no 
shortage request 
A2: Start in 2035; steady to 
2063 (~21 kAF/yr); no 
shortage request 

fil.: Start In 2025; max 
request; additional shortage 
request 
B2: Start in 2035; max 
request; additional shortage 
request 

9/4/2013 

29 



C"l'l 
.-I 

0 
N ........ 
<::I" ........en 

U) 
-+-
-

:J 
U) 

Q) 
� 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

:a 
: ... 
!(I) 

r-;t 
iO 

I I 

I I I ! I I I I 
I I • ' I ' ' < • 

-ii-1-11-----
, ' ' ' ' 

I ! 

awn10/\ pa!Jpads 

ie Ai!l!qeqOJd 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

ui' °' 
Lil 'SI" 

i i 
0 
0 
0 

«1 
N 

0 
0 
0 
'Sl"
.-i 

0 
0 
0 
,..._-

0 
C"l'l 



Model Results 

� 

35 
000 

- ,-------------------------------- -----------
, 

28 000 - ,-----------
, 

21 000 - ,-----------
, 

In 2023, there is a 35% 
probability of needing 
7,0CXJ AF of recovery. 
and a 17% probability
of needing 14,000 Af 

14,000 -it �-�-

7,000 -1 
6% 13% 

16% 15% 16 

9/4/2013 

31 



��� 

77,000 -

70,000 -

63,000 -

56,000 _, -· 

49,000 

42,000 -

35,000 -

28,000 

21,000 -

14,000 

7,000 -

There is a 75% 
probability that 

recovery needs will 
be less than this line. 

9/4/2013 

32 



Scenario A 
� 

Recovery for On-River P4 � ..-. 
CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; On-River: ADWR NIA "A", No Ag Convert��

� 
65,000 

60,000 · 

55,000 

50,000 · 

45,000 · 

40,000 · 

35,000 • 

30,000 

25,000 • 

20,000 

15,000 · 

10,000 · 

5,000 

Median I O I 22 I
O IAverage 327 1,941 2,638 

Maximum 4,099 6,745 8,417 

9/4/2013 

33 



34 

Scenario A 

�� 

Recovery for Indian NIA 
CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; On-River: ADWR NIA "A"; Long-Term </; _A

Contracts: Full by 2045 0J):> 
65,000 

60,000 -

55,000 

50,000 -

45,000 -

40,000 

35,000 

30,000 -

25,000 -

20,000 -

15,000 

10,000 -

5,000 

�dian I O I O I O IAverage 568 3,731 6,718 

Maximum 7,889 14,267 22
,269 

9/4/2013 

34 



Scenario A 

65,000 -

60,000 -

55,000 -

50,000 -

45,000 -

40,000 -

35,000 

30,000 -

25,000 -

20,000 -

15,000 -

10,000 

5,000 -

<@¢ Recovery for M&I � ....-"\ 
CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; On-River: ADWR NIA "A"; Long-Term �� 

Contracts: Full by 2045 v 
r

•• 

Median I O I O I O 

IAverage O O 977 

Maximum O O 42,086 

9/4/2013 

35 



Scenario A 

140,000 • 

133,000 

126,000 

119,000 • 

112,000 • 

105,000 

98,000 

91,000 

ti 84,000 • 

77,000 

70,000 

63,000 · 

56,000 · 

49,000 

42,000 • 

35,000 • 

28,000 • 

21,000 • 

14,000 • 

7,000 • 

TOTAL Recovery 1J CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; Nevada: No Request, No Short; On�
� River: ADWR NIA "A", No Ag Convert; Long-Term Contracts: Full by 

� 2045
�

� 

IT]. 
--· •---

. 

" 
.... " 

•·-"
W\ '11'-

,,_.._ II'-

� ... 11, 

.. " 

9/4/2013 

36 



Scenario Al 

140,000 

133,000 

126,000 

119,000 

112,000 

105,000 -

98,000 

91,000 

ti 84,000 -

77,000 -
c,: 

70,000 -

63,000 -

56,000 -

49,000 -

42,000 -

35,000 

28,000 -

21,000 

14,000 

7,000 

TOTAL Recovery 1) CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; Nevada: Steady Request, 2025 to�
� 2063, No Short; On-River: ADWR NIA" A", No Ag Convert; Long-Term 

<f. Contracts: Full by 2045 -··-· 

� 

.. 

9/4/2013 

37 



Scenario A2 

140,000 

133,000 -

126,000 -

119,000 · 

112,000 ·1 = 

105,000 -

98,000 -

91,000 · 

1ii 84,000 -

77,000 -
ct 

70,000 

63,000 

56,000 · 

49,000 

42,000 

35,000 -

28,000 -

21,000 -

14,000 

7,000 -

38 

TOTAL Recovery � CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; Nevada: Steady Request, 2035 to�
� 2063, No Short; On-River: ADWR NIA "A", No Ag Convert; Long-Term 

"</. Contracts: Full by 2045 

� 

�

·LJ ·

" 

9/4/2013 

38 



Scenario B 
CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ ��!!�s��!��N��!uest, No Short; On�

� 

� 

c( 

River: ADWR NIA "A", Full Ag Convert by 2035; Long-Term Contracts:
<1 Full by 2035 

� 
140,000 

133,000 -

126,000 -

119,000 

112,000 • 

105,000 • 

98,000 • 

91,000 

84,000 

77,000 • 

70,000 -

63,000 

56,000 • 

49,000 • 

42,000 • 

35,000 

28,000 

21,000 ., .. ··-····· 

14,000 • 

7,000 -

.. -rn-.•
-◄--- I� 

. .  - �; -- � 
--- ,� 

9/4/2013 

39 



Scenario Bl 

140,000 

133,000 -

126,000 -

119,000 -

112,000 

105,000 

98,000 

91,000 

ti 84,000 -

77,000 .,. 
C 

70,000 

63,000 

56,000 

49,000 -

42,000 -

35,000 

28,000 

21,000 • 

14,000 • 

7,000 

CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ �!:�ns���a�!��um Reques� 202�
� Start, w/Short; On-River: ADWR NIA "A", Full Ag Convert by 2035; Long-

<f Term Contracts: Full by 2035 
� 

- -··- - - ·-··-· " � 

�. 

-
. 
-

.... ,. 

11'4 ,.,, :� r,,. 

"' 
" 

"' 

9/4/2013 

40 



Scenario B2 

ti 

o( 

140,000 

133,000 

126,000 • 

119,000 -

112,000 -

105,000 .,, 

98,000 .,, 

91,000 • 

84,000 

77,000 • 

70,000 

63,000 • 

56,000 -

49,000 • 

42,000 -

35,000 -

28,000 

21,000 ., 

14,000 -

7,000 • 

TOTAL Recovery f} CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; Nevada: Maximum Request, 203�
� Start, w/Short; On-River: ADWR NIA "A", Full Ag Convert by 2035; Long-

<:/. Term Contracts: Full by 2035 / A � 0J:>

11,· " 

.. ...

9/4/2013 

41 



Summary Table 

(R\"O' �� __ - Maximum
•••_ •

•
• -��- - .. -· . - . . 

2017 

2035 

-:::
2017 

Interstate 2025 

55% 

55% 

16% 
·-· -

55% 

100% 

10,300 

6,800 

0 

17,000 
----

0 

�a 

1 
22,700 11 23,700 

15,500 19,900 
'f Ii 

----

0 42,000 

38,200 84,200 

I 60,000 60,000 
!i 

98,200 144� 

9/4/2013 

42 



Scenario B2 

Remaining Credits 
� �� \) Total Intrastate Credit Balance

�� -CRSS: 9/13 Run, AZ Assumptions; On-River: ADWR NIA "A", Full
Ag Convert by 2035; Long-Term Contracts: Full by 2035

3,250,000 -

3,000,000 

2,750,000 -

2,500,000 -

2,250,000 -

2,000,000 -

1,750,000 

1,500,000 

1,250,000 

1,000,000 -

750,000 -

500,000 -

250,000 

o:-AVERAGE{lD0,123)<-MEDIAN {239,664� 

Initial Balance= 3,223,851 
Ending Balance 

Min 3,223,851 (100%} 
Max 2,426,945 {75%) 
Average I 2,923,728 1{91%) 
Median I 2,984,187 1{93%) 

9/4/2013 

43 



Summary of Results 

o Earliest projected intrastate recovery is 2017
(l % probability; Indian NIA and On-River)

o Less than 35% probability of needing any
recovery before the Mid-Term planning
period (2024-2034)

o No M&I recovery projected until Long-Term
planning period (2035-2045)

o Bulk of intrastate credits remain past 2045

o Timing and magnitude of Nevada's request
plays significanf role in Mid-Term and Long
Term planning periods

9/4/2013 

44 



Next Steps 

o Develop Sections 5-7 which deal with how

the recovery will occur

o Recovery Methods

o Opportunities by AMA

o General Costs

o Implementation

o Future Activities & Commitments

9/4/2013 

45 



DRAFT Arizona Baseline Model 
Colorado River Simulation System (CRSS) and Analysis Assumptions 

August 29, 2013 

Purpose and Intended Uses Statement - in development 

Parameter I Arizona Baseline Assumptions I Remarks 

Will consider changing 
versions when Basin Study 

Official model from the Bureau of Reclamation. 
Main version of model is 

Base Model Main version of model - 2010 BiNational Model. 
available. Need to decide on 

Version date TO BE DECIDED. 
USBR January or August 
model and frequency of 
updates. May be able to update 
Ruleset only. 

Plan to explore the Paleo and 
1906-2010 historical natural flow used to predict Down-Scaled Climate 

Hydrology future flow conditions using the Indexed Sequential hydrologies as sensitivity 
Method. analyses once the data is 

available. 

Model Run Period 
The model run period is up to 100 years based upon 
the current year (for example, 2013 to 2112). 

Actual elevations from December 31 of the year prior 

Initial Reservoir to the model run. The Bureau's 24-month study An updated model run can be 
Conditions reports provide reservoir conditions at the end of the used if conditions warrant. 

month. 

Based on the 2007 Interim Guidelines, equalization is 
In the 2007 Interim 

based upon the Lake Powell "Equalization" line, 
Guidelines, the 602a storage 

Lake Powell which is in effect through 2026. (Interim Guidelines 
Equalization / Section XI.G.6A) Consistent with the Colorado River 

algorithm goes into effect after 

602a Storage Basin Supply and Demand Study, the equalization 
2026. 

line is extended from 2027 and it is capped at the 
elevation determined for 2060. 

Surplus deliveries as described in 2007 Interim 
Guidelines: 
- Flood Control Surplus
- Quantified Surplus (70R) ICS delivery schedules are 
- Domestic Surplus - above elevation 1,145 and assumed to be updated 

US Lower Basin 
below Quantified Surplus. This surplus ends in annually and completed 

Surplus 
2026. through 2026. Verify the ICS 

- Intentionally Created Surplus (ICS) - above schedules are up-to-date and 
elevation 1,075 and no Flood Control Surplus is provide a print-out of what is 
declared. ICS extends through 2026, except stated in the model. 
Tributary Conservation (SNW A) which goes
through 2057. ICS deliveries will be per submitted
ICS schedules for Arizona, California, and Nevada.

I 



I Parameter II Arizona Baseline Assumptions I Remarks I 
Per the 1944 Water Treaty and Minute 319, deliveries 
to Mexico will be increased: 
- 40,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is between

1,145 and 1,170 ft. msl
- 55,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is between Verify ICMA schedules in 

1,170 and 1,200 ft. msl model. Should be I 04kAF in 
Mexico Surplus - 80,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is at or above 2014 and 52kAF in 2015 and 

1,200 ft. msl but below levels for flood control 2016. Provide print-out of 
releases what is stated in model. 

- 200,000 acre-feet during flood control releases
Release of ICMA (Intentionally Created Mexico

Allocation) will be per the ICMA schedule as
provided in Minute 319.

Shortages based on Lake Mead elevations as 
described in the 2007 Interim Guidelines: 

- Below 1,075 feet and above 1,050 feet: 333,000 af
US Lower Basin shortage of which 320,000 af is
born by Arizona.

- Below 1,050 feet and above 1,025 feet: 417,000
US Lower Basin acre-feet US Lower Basin shortage of which

Shortages 400,000 af is born by Arizona.
- Below 1,025 feet:500,000 acre-feet US Lower

Basin shortage of which 480,000 is born by
Arizona.

- Below 1,025 feet, reconsultation required.
The shortage guidelines are assumed to extend
beyond 2026.

As specified in Minute 319, deliveries to Mexico will 
be reduced: 
- 50,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is between

1,075 and 1,050 ft ms!.

Mexico Shortages 
- 70,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is between

1,050- 1,025 ft. ms!.
- 125,000 acre-feet when Lake Mead is below 1,025

ft ms!.
Mexico shortage sharing is assumed to be extended 
for the length of the modeling period. 

The Director's recommendation to the Secretary is the 

Arizona Priority 4 
agreement between the Priority 4 mainstem users and 
the CAP as described in the 2006 Shortage Sharing 

Shortage Sharing 
Agreement. Shortages for Priority 4 mainstem users 
would be based on their entitlements. 

Operation of 

Yuma Yuma Desalination Plant not operated. 
Desalination Plant 

2 



I Parameter II Arizona Baseline Assumptions I Remarks I 
Upper Basin depletion 
schedules updated through the 

Upper Basin Upper Basin demand schedule with a build-up to 4.8 
Basin Study will be explored 
to evaluate the assumptions for 

Demand million acre-feet by 2031. 4.8 MAF of demands 
location, timing and 

Projections includes cultural depletions only. 
magnitude of depletion 
schedules. 

California and Nevada and California demand projections as shown 
Nevada Demands in the 2007 Interim Shortage Guidelines FEIS. 

Arizona Mainstem 
Mainstem municipal contractors' demands based on These baseline assumptions 

Non-Indian 
2006 Department of Economic Security (DES) were used for the WRDC and 

Municipal 
population projections for the period 2006 to 2055. Basin Study. 

Contractors 
The projections were extrapolated to 2110 using trend 

Demands 
lines up to entitlement limits. The 2010 population Priority descriptions to be 
was based on estimates made by DES. added 

Arizona Mainstem 
Mainstem industrial contractors demands based on the 

Non-Indian 
average consumptive use and diversion for the 2000-

Industrial and 

Other Contractors 
2012 period based on Reclamation's Water 

Demands 
Accounting Reports. 

Arizona Mainstem Mainstem agricultural contractors demands based on 
Non-Indian the average consumptive use and diversion for the P4 conversion to M&I uses by 
Agricultural 2000-2012 period based on Reclamation's Water 2035 will be considered. 
Demands Accounting Reports. 

The Ten Tribes schedule is an 
alternate schedule that was 

Mainstem tribal demands based on the average 
developed in 2000 and used in 
the Interim Surplus FEIS and 

Arizona Mainstem consumptive use and diversion for the 2000-2012 
the 2007 Interim Guidelines 

Tribal Demands period based on Reclamation's Water Accounting 
FEIS. The Ten Tribes schedule 

Reports. 
has depletions greater than the 
Arizona Baseline Assumptions 
by about 130 kaf. 

3 



� Arizona Baseline Assumptions Remarks - -· ··~·

Central Arizona 
CAP M&I demands increase to full subcontract 

Project (CAP) 
utilization by 2045. Additionally, the Pool increases 

Municipal and 
by 47,303 acre-feet beginning in 2044 due to the 

Industrial Priority 
conversion of NIA Priority Hohokam water. Also 
assumes full utilization of M&I priority water 

Demands 
allocated to San Carlos Apache Tribe by 2045. 

CAP Indian Priority demands increase to full contract 
utilization, including full use of existing long-term 

CAP Indian leases and exchanges, by 2045. Within that usage, 
Priority Demands assumes an additional 55,000 acre-feet of the priority 

pool will be leased and utilized by M&I users by 
2045. 

CAP NIA Priority pool fully utilized by 2045. After 
2043, the NIA Priority Water is reduced by 47,303 
acre-feet due to the Hohokam conversion. The 
reallocation of the 96,295 AF for M&T uses occurs in 

CAP Non-Indian .wo rounds: 55,255 AF allocated by 2015 and fully 
Agricultural (NIA) utilized by 2020; 41,040 AF allocated by 2023 and 
Priority Demands fully utilized by 2028. The 67,300 reserved for future 

Indian Settlements is used in two parts: 23,782 by the 
White Mountain Apache in 2016, and the remainder; 
(43,518 AF) is allocated by 2036 and fully utilized by 
2045. 

CAP Agricultural This pool of excess CAP water is assumed to be fully 
Settlement Pool utilized: 400,000 AF through 2016; 300,000 AF 
Demands through 2023; and 225,000 AF through 2030. 

Distribution of shortages among the CAP priority 
Results will be stated for the 

CAP System "pools" (Excess, including Ag Pool, NIA, CAP Indian 
priority category (pools) and 

Shortages and M&I) as described in the Gila River Indian 
Community Water Rights Settlement Agreement 

not to individual contractors. 

4 



Re-evaluation of 1997 A WBA Firming Goals 

The current A WBA firming goals were developed in 1997 in conjunction with the 
A WBA identifying a reasonable number of long-term storage credits accrued with 
general fund appropriations for use by Colorado River M&I users outside the CAP 
service area. The goals were developed utilizing the modeling tools and assumptions 
available at the time the models were run. Since those goals were established, there have 
been several changes in how the Colorado River is operated and modeled. The latest 
changes to the model have evolved out of the basinwide studies. Because of the changes 
in the model, it is reasonable for the A WBA to use this revised model and re-evaluate the 
goals established in 1997. 

Two scenarios will be utilized for this re-evaluation: 

1. Interim Guidelines extended (the Interim Guidelines terminate at the end of
2026, this scenario would extend the operating rules utilized for the interim
period for the entire planning period)

a. Modeled utilizing the Director's Recommended Arizona Shortage
Sharing Guidelines for the entire planning period (prorating the shortage
amounts based on entitlements)

b. Modeled utilizing Arizona shortage sharing base on prorating the shortage
amounts based on annual uses for the entire planning period

2. Interim Guideline Preferred Alternative (utilizing the Interim Guidelines
through 2016 and then utilizing an SOP operating philosophy. The SOP
philosophy is a probabilistic protection of Lake Mead elevation of 1050 feet with
an absolute protection Lake Mead elevation 1000 feet)

a. Modeled utilizing the Director's Recommended Arizona Shortage
Sharing Guidelines for the entire planning period (prorating the shortage
amounts based on entitlements)

b. Modeled utilizing Arizona shortage sharing base on prorating the shortage
amounts based on annual uses for the entire planning period



IV. Draft 2014 Plan of Operation

NOTES: (Direction for staff) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to discuss the Draft 2014 Annual Plan of Operation 

• Draft Water delivery schedule (Table 2)

• Water/facility rates

• Funding availability

• Future public meetings to discuss the draft Plan

ACTION: 

Direction for staff to schedule and hold public meetings on the Draft 2014 Plan of 

Operation in conjunction with the Groundwater Users Advisory Council Meetings in 

the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs. 



Prelin1111ary 2014 AWBA Plan of Operation 

AWBA-Recharae Sites 

PHOENIX AMA: 
HIEROGLYPHIC MTN 

u. AGUA FRIA 
en 

TONOPAH DESERT :J 

SUPERSTITION MTNS 

u. 
NEW MAGMA 

en QUEEN CREEK 
C) 

TONOPAH ID 

AMA TOTAL INTRASTATE 

PINAL AMA· 

u.
CAIDD 

en HOHOKAM 
C) 

MSIDD 

AMA TOTAL INTRASTATE 

TUCSON AMA: 
AVRA VALLEY 

u. 
LOWER SANTA CRUZ 

en PIMA MINE ROAD 
:J 

CAVSARP 
SAVSARP 

CORTARO-MARANA ID 
u. KAI FARMS (Red Rock) 

BKW Farms 

AMA TOTAL INTRASTATE 

TOTAL INTRASTATE 

TOTAL INTERSTATE 

TOTAL RECHARGE 

DIRECT DELIVERY (Non-Storage): 

Permitted Capacity 
(AF) 

35,000 
100,000 

150,000 

35,000 

54,000 
28,000 
15,000 

110,000 
55,000 
120,000 

11,000 
50,000 
30,000 
100,000 
60,000 

20,000 
11,231 
14,316 

..... ·-··----�·-

Southside Replenishment Bank 
Southside Replenishment ObliC1ation 

TOTAL DIRECT 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 

DRAFT 8/28 

Jan 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

400 

400 

0 
1,000 

0 
0 

2,000 

0 
0 
0 

3,000 

3,400 

0 

3,400 

0 
0 

0 

3,400 

Table 2 

Water Delivery Schedule (Acre-Feet) 

Calendar Year 2014 

Feb Mar Apr Mav Jun 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

500 900 900 900 500 

500 900 900 900 500 

0 0 0 0 0 
1,000 1,000 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

2,000 2,000 2,000 0 0 

0 0 0 482 1,000 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

3,000 3,000 2,000 482 1,000 

3,500 3,900 2,900 1,382 1,500 

0 0 0 0 0 

3,500 3,900 2,900 1,382 1,500 

5,000 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

5,000 0 0 0 0 

8,500 3,900 2,900 1,382 1,500 

Jul Auo Seo 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 
175 1,343 2,285 

0 0 0 

175 1,343 2,285 

0 6,000 0 
0 1,500 1,500 

200 200 400 

200 7,700 1,900 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 500 1,000 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

1,000 750 0 
0 0 500 
0 0 0 

1,000 1,250 1,500 

1,375 10,293 5,685 
........ ---·-·--··--·-·-.. -·,-·-·-·---·-··- _____ ,,_ 

0 0 

1,375 10,293 

0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

1,375 10,293 

0 

5,685 

0 

0 

0 

5,685 

Oct 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
1,142 

0 

1,142 

0 
1,500 

400 

1,900 

0 
2,000 
1,000 

0 
0 

0 
500 

0 

3,500 

6,542 

0 

6,542 

0 

0 

0 

6,542 

Nov 

0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
1,143 

0 

1,143 

0 
1,500 

500 

2,000 

300 
1,000 

500 
0 

2,000 

0 

0 
0 

3,800 

6,943 

0 

6,943 

0 

0 

0 

6,943 

Dec Total 

1,000 1,000 
2,438 2,438 

6,000 6,000 

3,000 3,000 

12,438 

0 0 
1,142 7,230 

0 0 

7,230 

13,580 19,668 

6,000 
0 6,000 

200 6,000 

18,000 

200 18,000 

700 1,000 
1,000 7,000 
1,000 4,000 

0 0 

2,000 12,000 
24,000 

0 3,232 

0 1,000 
0 0 

4,232 

4,700 28,232 

18,480 65,900 
•••-"'••••••••-•••-••••••••"••-•••••""""••--•-•• 

0 0 

18,480 65,900 

0 5,000 

0 0 

0 5,000 

18,480 70,900 



Preliminary 2014 AWBA Plan of Operation 

Table 3. 2014 Water and Facility Rates 

Recharge Cost per Acre-foot 

CAWCD delivery rate to AWBA for water storage $166 

Interstate rate $189 

Groundwater Savings Facility operator cost share rate
1 

Intrastate 

Phoenix and Pinal AMAs $34 

Tucson AMA $16 

Interstate $26 

Underground Storage Facility rate paid by AWBA 

CAWCD - Phoenix Facilities 
2 

$8 

CAWCD -Tucson Facilities 
3 

$15 

Avra Valley Recharge Project $15.45 

Clearwater Facility (CAVSARP/SAVSARP) $15.62 

Direct Deliveries 

CAWCD rate to AWBA for Southside Replenishment Bank deliveries $166 

1 
This rate is paid directly to CAP by the GSF operators and is not available as revenue to the AWBA. The 
AWBA's rate for delivery of in lieu water is thus reduced to $132/af for intrastate deliveries to the Phoenix and 
Pinal AMAs, $150/af to the Tucson AMA, and $163/af for interstate deliveries. 

2 Additional capital charge of $15 per acre-foot for interstate storage.

3 Additional capital charge of $9 per acre-foot for interstate storage.

DRAFT 09/03/2013 2 



Preliminary 2014 AWBA Plan of Operation 

Table 4. Funding for 2014 Annual Plan of Operation 

Estimated Funds Estimated Funds Utilized Estimated 
Available ($) ($) Credits 

AWBA CAWCD1 AWBA CAWCD (AF) 

Withdrawal Fees 
Phoenix AMA $2,700,000 - $675,000 - 3,920 

Pinal AMA
2 

$2,440,000 - $2,406,000 - 10,980 

Tucson AMA $400,000 - $397,000 - 2,070 

Four Cent Tax 
Phoenix AMA $0 $12,800,000 $0 $1,845,000 14,180 

Pinal AMA $0 $800,000 $0 $800,000 5,580 

Tucson AMA
3 

$0 $3,100,000 $0 $3,100,000 16,100 

Other 
General Fund 
Phoenix AMA $0 

Pinal AMA - $0 - 0 

Tucson AMA - $0 - 0 
- $0 - 0 

Shortaae Reparations (NV): $1,500,000 

Phoenix AMA - $0 0 

Pinal AMA - $0 0 

Tucson AMA - $1,500,000 7,800 

TOTALS $23,740,000 $11,322,000 60,630 

1 
The figures shown are estimates provided by CAWCD staff, and are based on amounts anticipated to be 
collected during the 2013-2014 tax year. If utilization is greater than estimated, there may be additional funds 
held by CAWCD that could be made available at the discretion of the CAWCD Board of Directors. 

2 
Includes expenditure for 5,000 acre-feet of direct deliveries to establish the Southside Replenishment Bank 
under the Gila River Indian Water Settlement Program. 

3 
Estimates include revenue from CAWCD's capital charge for construction of state demonstration projects when 
facilities are used for interstate purposes and by entities that do not pay the 4¢ ad valorem tax. 

DRAFT 8/28 3 



Preliminary 2014 AWBA Plan of Operation 

Table 6. Projected Percent of Goals and Obligations Achieved through 2014 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits Percent 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. 

Achieved (AF) Achieved 

Phoenix AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 1,349,914 86% 

Groundwater MQmt1 Withdrawal Fees 305,652 

Pinal AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 204,757 84% 

Groundwater Mgmt1 Withdrawal Fees 414,699 

Tucson AMA 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 412,296 48% 

Groundwater Mgmt1
·
2 Withdrawal Fees 97,542 59% 

On-River M&I Firminq3 General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96%4 

Indian Settlements: 

350,000 AF5 

up to 15,000 
GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0 0% 

200,000 AF5 

up to 8,724 
Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0 0% 

Federal Assistance $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,102 100% 

Tucson AMA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,481 

Withdrawal Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services6 $31,339 nla 

15,000 AF 
Southside Repl. Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Deliverv 10,000 67% 

Other: 

Shortage Reparations- Gifts, Grants, 
Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $6,000,000 98,811 75% 

Pinal Redirect Credits7 
N/A 14,125 NIA 

1 Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues for M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals.
2 Includes 234 AF credits acquired from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to §45-841. 01. 
3 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through
expenditure of general fund appropriations. 256,174 AF of credits reserved pursuant to contract with Mohave County Water 
Authority. 

4 This percentage reflects full utilization of general fund credits accrued to date and would change as other objectives are 
identified by the AWBA. 

5 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006.
6 Include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY08 and FY09, respectively. 

7 Credits accrued from 15,000 AF of water that was scheduled for the Tucson AMA and redirected to the Pinal AMA for storage
at GSFs. These credits are currently identified for M&I firming in the Tucson AMA and would meet 1 % of the firming goal. 

DRAFT 8/28 4 



V. Action Planning

NOTES: Potential Action

Call on Virginia O'Connell to brief Commission members on a proposal for

authorizing the A WBA to purchase long-term storage credits.

Documents in your books include:

• Discussion paper

• Draft agency legislative proposal

ACTION: 

Move approval to proceed with developing a legislative proposal amending A WBA 

statutes to expand the A WBA's authority to use funds in the Arizona Water Banking 

Fund for the purpose of purchasing of long-term storage credits. 

NOTES: (Direction for staff) 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to brief Commission members on a proposal for 

requesting a General Fund appropriation to assist in meeting the A WBA's Indian 

firming obligations. 

ACTION: 

Direction for staff to continue evaluating the utilization of General Fund 

appropriations for meeting the AWBA's Indian firming obligations and to provide 

recommendation on the amount and purpose for a General Fund appropriation at the 

AWBA meeting on October 16th
• 

Call on Virginia O'Connell to provide an update on progress toward the action 

planning process. 

ACTION: no action 



Summary 

Proposed Legislation Authorizing the Arizona Water Banking Authority 
to Purchase Long-term Storage Credits 

(Discussion Paper) 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (A WBA) was given several objectives when it was 
established in 1996, which include protecting municipal and industrial (M&I) water users during 
times of drought, facilitating Indian water rights settlements, and assisting in meeting the State's 
water management objectives. The A WBA meets these objectives through the storage of Central 
Arizona Project (CAP) water. While the A WBA has stored over 3.4 million acre-feet (MAF) of 
CAP water, resulting in 3.2 MAF of long-term storage credits (credits), the A WBA has not yet met 
its storage goals. The amount of CAP water available to the A WBA has decreased significantly the 
last few years as use by other higher priority CAP water users has increased. Water availability will 
further decrease if Colorado River water becomes limited by on-going drought. The decrease in 
supplies coupled with increasing costs will put the A WBA further behind in meeting its goals and 
limit its ability to provide critical supplies when needed. A legislative change that authorizes the 
A WBA to purchase credits could help address the issue of decreased CAP supplies available to the 
AWBA. 

Proposal 

Amending the statutes to provide the A WBA the authority to purchase credits would facilitate the 
achievement of A WBA goals and obligations by allowing the A WBA to accrue credits even in years 
when CAP supplies are curtailed or unavailable. The ability to purchase credits would give the 
A WBA additional flexibility as it works towards accomplishing its firming goals, while also 

expanding opportunities for meeting water management objectives by acquiring credits stored in 
areas where direct storage of CAP water by the A WBA is not available. By purchasing credits the 
A WBA could accrue more credits at or near today's rates which could reduce the A WBA firming 
cost. 

In addition, the A WBA is obligated to replace existing general fund appropriation credits after they 
are used to firm non-Indian supplies. The need to replace these credits could occur at a time when 
water is unavailable to the A WBA making it difficult to replace the credits through traditional 
storage. The ability to purchase otherwise unused credits could improve the AWBA's ability to 
quickly replace the credits so that they can once again be available for firming supplies. It would 
also assist the A WBA in determining the cost of the replacement credits that must be paid by the 
entity that benefitted from the credits. 

Background and Issue 

The A WBA was established by the Legislature in 1996 to store Arizona's unused Colorado River 
entitlement to protect Arizona M&I water users against future shortages, to facilitate Arizona Indian 
water rights settlements, and to assist the state in fulfilling the water management objectives of the 
1980 Groundwater Code. By storing water, the AWBA accrues credits that can be recovered to 
provide critical backup supplies ("firming") of Colorado River and CAP water during shortages. 
The credits can also be extinguished to mitigate the effects of groundwater pumping on the aquifer. 

To date, the AWBA has accrued over 3.2 MAF of credits to meet Arizona's future water needs. Of 
this amount, approximately 2.5 MAF of credits have been accrued for M&I and Indian firming 



purposes and about 676,000 have been accrued for meeting groundwater management objectives. 
Based on the current estimated firming goals totaling 3.6 MAF, the AWBA will need to store 
roughly 1.2 MAF of CAP water to accrue the additional 1.1 MAF of credits that are needed. The 
current firming goals are best estimates of supplies that may be needed in the future. These 
estimates could change if hydrologic conditions change as certain climate models would suggest. 
Furthermore, while the A WBA may have an estimated numeric goal for meeting Indian firming 
needs (550,000 AF), the A WBA is required to provide back up supplies whenever they are needed 
during the 100-year firming timeframe, the actual amount needed could exceed that goal. 

The annual volume of CAP water available to the A WBA for storage has decreased significantly 
since 2010 due to increased use by higher priority water users. While this increase in use was 
anticipated, it occurred earlier than expected and has affected the A WBA' s ability to store the 
volumes of water originally projected. In 2013, the AWBA had only 53,000 acre-feet of CAP water 
available for storage: 40 percent of A WBA 2012 storage and 21 percent of AWBA average annual 
historic storage volume of 253,000 acre-feet. 

The magnitude of the impact is apparent when the A WBA's 2012 and 2013 ten-year planning 
projections are compared. The 2012 projections identified over 1.2 MAF of CAP water available, 
while 2013 planning projections show that only 690,000 acre-feet would be available over the next 
ten years. These volumes may also be optimistic given the recent projections by the Bureau of 
Reclamation that suggest that if current hydrologic conditions on the Colorado River persist, Arizona 
could face its first ever shortage by 2016. The potential shortage is not expected to result in a 
firming requirement for the A WBA, however it would mean the A WBA would not have supplies 
available for storage in 2016 and perhaps future years because of its status as a low priority CAP 
water user. 

The amount of water that the A WBA can actually use for storage is also influenced by the cost per 
acre-foot of CAP water, which has increased significantly the last few years and is slated to increase 
annually due to higher energy costs. The increasing costs could further reduce the amount of water 
that can be stored by the A WBA. The decrease in supplies in conjunction with increasing costs will 
put the A WBA further behind in meeting its goals and its ability to provide critical supplies when 
they are needed. 

The A WBA's authority to purchase credits in not unprecedented, but is however only allowable 
under limited circumstances. The AWBA is currently authorized to purchase credits accrued by the 
Tohono O'odham Nation although the amount of credits available for purchase under this authority 
are limited and there are restrictions as to where these credits can be recovered. The A WBA can 
also purchase credits if they are needed to meet a replenishment obligation in the Southside 
Protection Zones established under the Gila River Indian Water Settlement Program. 

Recognizing the A WBA' s responsibilities, particular I y as the agent of the state for meeting Indian 
settlement obligations, the A WBA was given the statutory authority to obtain and store other 
renewable supplies when CAP water is unavailable. While these other resources may prove 
essential, the ability to store these supplies could also require the installation of costly infrastructure 
if the water is located in areas where recharge facilities are not readily accessible. Authorizing the 
A WBA to purchase existing credits could provide a more cost-effective alternative. 



DRAFT 8-28-13 

AGENCY LEGISLATIVE PROPOSAL 

Agency: Arizona Department of Water Resources (ADWR) 

Division: Arizona Water Banking Authority (A WBA) 

Potential Sponsors: To be Determined 

Proposal: Amend Title 45, Chapter 14 Arizona Water Banking Authority statutes to expand the 
AWBA's authority to purchase long-term storage credits for water banking purposes using any 
funding source available to the A WBA. 

Background/History: The A WBA's mission is to store Central Arizona Project (CAP) water 
underground to offset future shortages to municipal and industrial (M&I) water users and certain 
Indian Tribes during times of drought, and to assist in meeting the State's water management 
objectives. CAP water available to the A WBA has decreased significantly due to increased use 

by higher priority water users. Water availability will further decrease if Colorado River water 
becomes limited by on-going drought. Diminishing supplies coupled with increasing costs will 
put the AWBA further behind in meeting its goals putting users at risk during future shortages. 

The AWBA currently has authority to purchase credits under very narrow circumstances. 
Expanding this authority for other water banking purposes would allow the AWBA to accrue 
credits even in years when CAP supplies are curtailed or unavailable. The ability to purchase 
credits would give the A WBA more flexibility in meetingt its firming obligations, while also 
expanding opportunities for meeting water management objectives by acquiring credits located 
in areas where direct storage of CAP water by the A WBA is not possible. Finally, by purchasing 
credits, the A WBA could accrue more credits at today's rates reducing firming costs. 

The A WBA is also obligated to replace existing credits accrued with general fund appropriations 
after they are used to firm non-Indian supplies. The need to replace these credits could occur at a 
time when water is also unavailable to the A WBA making it difficult to replace the credits 
through traditional storage. The ability to purchase credits would allow the A WBA to quickly 
replace the credits making those credits immediately available to once again firm supplies. It 
would also help clarify the cost of replacing credits that must be paid by the entity that benefitted 
from the credits. 

Statutes Affected: Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 45, Chapter 14 §45-2457 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Policy Impact on other Agencies: To be determined 

Potential Supporters: To be determined 

Potential Opponents: To be determined 

Last printed 8/30/2013 2:25:00 PM8/27/2013 11:25:00 At,,•1 



DRAFT 8-28-13 

Has this been run previously? No.

Can this be done administratively? No.

Language: 

Last printed 8/30/2013 2:25:00 Pl\18/27/2013 11:25:00 AM 



Proposal for Requesting an Appropriation for Meeting Indian Settlement Obligations 
(Discussion Paper) 

Summary 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (A WBA), as the agent for the State of Arizona (State), 
has an obligation to ensure that 23,724 acre-feet of non-Indian agricultural (NIA) priority Central 
Arizona Project (CAP) water is made available to certain Arizona Indian Tribes during times of 
shortage as described in the Arizona Water Settlements Act, P.L. 108-451 (Settlements Act). The 
AWBA is also obligated to deliver an initial 15,000 acre-feet of water to the Gila River Indian 
Community (GRIC) Reservation to create a bank of water that can be used to replenish excess 
groundwater pumped from areas surrounding the Reservation. In recognition of these new 
responsibilities, in 2006 the Legislature provided the A WBA with additional tools for 
implementing an Indian Firming Program, which included a general fund appropriation of $13.5 
million and the ability to use withdrawal fee revenues after any general funds are utilized. 
However, shortly after the Settlements Act became enforceable in December of 2007, the 
Legislature swept $12.4 million in general funds dedicated for Indian firming and an additional 
$5.1 million in withdrawal fees. The loss of these funds in conjunction with a significant increase 
in CAP water rates has made it difficult for the A WBA to make progress on its firming 
obligations. To add further complication, the amount of CAP water available to the A WBA for 
storage has decreased sharply in recent years and may be unavailable altogether if a Lower 
Colorado River shortage is declared in the coming years as the Bureau of Reclamations's August 
2013 24-month study suggests. The decrease in CAP water supplies coupled with increasing 
costs and limited funds will put the A WBA further behind or impair its ability to meet the State's 
Indian settlement responsibilities. 

Proposal 

Incrementally appropriating funds previously swept from the Arizona Water Banking (AWB) 
Fund would improve the AWBA's ability to seek and secure agreements with Indian tribes that 
provide alternative ways for meeting the State's Indian settlement obligations and limit the 
State's exposure to these obligations. A general fund appropriation now would also allow the 
A WBA to take advantage of any additional water supplies that may become available to the 
A WBA so that additional credits can be accrued for Indian firming. If additional credits are not 
developed and/or a limit is not put on the State's exposure, the A WBA would likely have to seek 
future general fund appropriations to purchase water to firm Indian supplies in the future, when 
costs are expected to be significantly higher in an environment of decreased supplies and 
increased competition. 

A general fund appropriation for Indian firming at this time would also free-up withdrawal fee 
revenues so that they could potentially be used for meeting the State's other water management 
goals such as mitigating overdraft, assisting Active Management Areas (AMAs) in meeting the 
legislatively established management goals, improving aquifer health, and providing critical 
water supplies to CAP municipal and industrial (M&I) customers during shortages. 



Background and Issue 

In December, 2004, the State accepted specific obligations to develop an Indian Firming 
Program pursuant to the Settlements Act. In 2006, the Legislature authorized the A WBA to 
carry out the State's obligation under the Settlements Act, which requires the State to: 

• Firm 15,000 acre-feet of NIA priority CAP water re-allocated to the GRIC,

• Firm 8,724 acre-feet of NIA priority CAP water re-allocated in the future to Arizona Indian

tribes: 3,750 acre-feet of which is now held in reserve for the White Mountain Apache Tribe.

The State is required to firm NIA priority CAP water for a 100-year period during times of 
shortage and to deliver the water in the same manner that water with an M&I priority is delivered 
during water shortages. The Indian Firming Study Commission (IFSC) estimated the 100-year 
firming amount to be approximately 550,000: 350,000 acre-feet for the GRIC and 200,000 acre
feet for future settlements. The IFSC Final Report (January 2006) also estimated that the cost to 
accrue credits through traditional storage would range from $25 to $53 million depending on the 
type of storage facility used. 

In addition to the firming requirements, the AWBA is required to deliver an initial 15,000 acre
feet of water to the GRIC for the purpose of establishing the Southside Replenishment Bank. 
The Southside Replenishment Bank will fulfill the obligations created under the Settlements Act 
for protection of the Reservation from off-reservation groundwater pumping. 

In recognition of these additional responsibilities, the Legislature authorized the A WBA to 
establish a reserve account in the A WB Fund for implementing the Indian Firming Program and, 
in October 2006, deposited $13.5 million to the account. The AWBA was also authorized to 
utilize withdrawal fees collected in the Phoenix, Pinal, and Tucson Active Mangement Areas 
(AMA) in the absence of legislative appropriations. However, only Pinal AMA withdrawal fee 
revenues may be used for meeting replenishment activities. Since August of 2008, the 
Legislature reappropriated $12.4 million from the Indian firming reserve account and over $5.1 
million from the withdrawal fee accounts. 

The A WBA has accrued roughly 105,000 acre-feet of credits from water stored on the GRIC 
Reservation that can be used to firm supplies for the GRIC during shortages, leaving an 
estimated 445,000 acre-feet of credits needed overall. The cost to accrue these credits at 2014 
rates ranges from $63 to $83 million. However, while the A WBA may have a goal for meeting 
Indian firming needs, the A WBA is required to provide back up supplies whenever they are 
needed, which could exceed current projections due to external factors such as long-term 
reductions in Colorado River supplies or increased demand. Additionally, the A WBA has 
delivered 5,000 acre-feet of water to the Southside Replenishment Bank. The cost for delivering 
the remaining 10,000 acre-feet is estimated at $2 million. The A WBA's ability to meet these 
obligations will be compromised by increasing CAP water costs, minimal funding resources, and 
severe reductions in the water supplies available to the A WBA. 

CAP water available to the AWBA has decreased significantly since 2010, while costs have 
steadily increased. For 2013, the A WBA had only 53,000 acre-feet of CAP water available for 



storage (21 % of the average annual historic storage volumes). Current planning projections show 
that the A WBA will only have an estimated 690,000 acre-feet of water over the next ten years to 
meet all of its goals and obligations, including Indian firming (only 58 % of the ten-year 
estimates developed in 2012). These volumes are likely optimistic given the recent projections 
by the Bureau of Reclamation that suggest Arizona could face its first ever Colorado River 
shortage by 2016. This would mean that the AWBA would not have supplies available for 2016 
and possibly for subsequent years, if consecutive shortages are declared. With no CAP water 
supplies, the A WBA will need to acquire alternative supplies that would require the expenditure 
of funds that are simply not available to the A WBA Annual revenues from withdrawal fees are 
approximately $3.2 million. 

The A WBA' s requirement to firm Indian supplies was imposed atop its prior responsibilities. 
Although the A WBA may use previously accrued withdrawal fee credits for Indian firming 
purposes, doing so divert those credits from the State's other existing water management 
objectives. The A WBA's need to firm Indian supplies will come at a time when the availability 
of CAP Agricultural Pool water is expired or has been depleted and farmers have returned to 
groundwater pumping to meet irrigation needs. This increase in groundwater pumping could 
reverse much of the State's progress on reducing overdraft and meeting the management goals of 
the AMAs. Withdrawal fees credits used for Indian firming will not be available to potentially 
mitigate the effects of groundwater pumping. It will also impact the A WBA's ability to meet its 
firming goals for CAP M&I priority subcontractors, particularly in the Tucson AMA, where the 
A WBA's progress in meeting its firming goalis limited by insufficient funding resources. 

Restoring the funds previously swept from the AWB Fund would improve the A WBA's ability 
to seek alternative ways for meeting the State's Indian settlement obligations in addition to 
traditional storage. These opportunities could also result in limiting the State's future exposure 
to its firming responsibilities, resulting in reduced overall costs. In addition, a general fund 
appropriation for Indian firming now would allow the A WBA to use withdrawal fee revenues for 
aquifer management purposes, as they were originally intended. 



VI. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 

Wednesday, October 16, 2013 

The D�cember meeting has been rescheduled for Wednesday, December 4, 2013 




